MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS OF HENRICO COUNTY, HELD IN THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING IN THE GOVERNMENT CENTER AT PARHAM AND HUNGARY SPRING ROADS, ON THURSDAY MARCH 24, 2016 AT 9:00 A.M., NOTICE HAVING BEEN PUBLISHED IN THE RICHMOND TIMES-DISPATCH MARCH 7, 2016, AND MARCH 14, 2016.

Members Present:

Gentry Bell, Chairman Greg Baka, Vice Chairman

Dennis J. Berman Helen E. Harris

William M. Mackey, Jr.

Also Present:

Jean M. Moore, Assistant Director of Planning

Benjamin Blankinship, Secretary Paul Gidley, County Planner

R. Miguel Madrigal, County Planner

Mr. Bell - Welcome to the March 24th meeting of the Henrico County Board of Zoning Appeals. I ask you to please stand and join me in pledging allegiance to our flag. Thank you.

Mr. Blankinship, would you please read our rules.

Mr. Blankinship - Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members of the Board, ladies and gentlemen. The rules for this meeting are as follows: By acting as secretary, I'll announce each case, and as I'm speaking, the applicant can come down to the podium. We will then ask everyone who intends to speak to that case to stand and be sworn in. Then a member of the staff will give a brief presentation, and then the applicant will present their case. Then anyone else who wishes to speak will be given the opportunity to speak. After everyone has had a chance to speak, the Board will take that case under advisement and will proceed to the next public hearing. There are two public hearings this morning. After the second public hearing, the Board will go back and make the decisions on both cases. You can either stay until they make those decisions, or you can check the Planning Department website—we get it updated usually within the hour of the end of the meeting—or you can call the Planning Department later today.

This meeting is being recorded, so we will ask everyone who speaks to speak directly into the microphone on the podium. State your name, and please spell your last name so we get it correctly in the record.

With that, Mr. Chairman, all the members of the Board are present. We don't have any requests for deferral or withdrawal. We did have a request from one member of the staff to address the Board, if that would be agreeable.

37		
38	Mr. Bell -	That's agreeable.
39		-
40	Ms. Redford -	I just wanted to tell the Board how much I've enjoyed
41	working for them for 30-so	me years.
42		
43	Mr. Bell -	Excuse me. Could you identify yourself, please?
44	Ma Dalfard	One cannot be have De Mart. The Safe to that a conse
45	Ms. Redford -	I'm sorry. I'm June Redford. The initials that you see
46	•	t's me. I've enjoyed working for you all these 30-some
47	*	you know that I am retiring as of April 1st, so. I just been a pleasure working for you, and I hope I've done
48 49	a good job.	been a pleasure working for you, and I hope I ve done
50	a good job.	
51	Mr. Bell -	June, if you're like me, the next thing they ask you is
52	what you're retiring to.	curie, in you're like me, the next aling they don't you le
53	,	
54	Ms. Redford -	Oh yeah. Yes, that's true. I haven't figured that one
55	out yet. I have loved what	I've done. It's been hard to leave, but it's time. It's time
56	to go. Thank you all.	
57		
58	Mr. Berman -	Thank you.
59		
60	Mr. Bell -	Thank you for your 30 years.
61	Ma Diantinalia	to a contract to the first term of the second term of the second terms of the second t
62	Mr. Blankinship -	June was a drafts person and cartographer for many
63		threw away all of her pens and things and put a
64 65		lobody asked her whether she wanted to make that sone of several people on the staff who did a really
66		ansition. She's been very valuable to our process.
67	great job of making mat tre	ansition. One 3 been very valuable to our process.
68	Mr. Bell -	Thank you. Let's go ahead and call the first new
69	applicant.	, and the second
70		
71	CUP2016-00003	ROYCE AND PATRICIA ROBINSON request a
72	conditional use permit pu	rsuant to Section 24-95(i)(4) of the County Code to
73		e yard at 9313 Olde Mill Pond Drive (PONDS AT
74	,	arcel 758-764-1659) zoned One-Family Residence
75	District (R-3AC) (Brookland	d).
76	Ma Diadi di	Marile and a second of the sec
77		Would everyone who intends to speak to this case,
78		n in. Raise your right hands, please. Do you swear the
79		give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the ank you. Mr. Gidley, if you would begin.
80 81	Truth so help you God? The	ank you. Mr. Gidicy, if you would begin.
OΙ		

Mr. Gidley - Thank you, Mr. Secretary. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members of the Board.

The subject property is 9313 Olde Mill Pond Drive in the Ponds at Dandridge Farm subdivision. The applicant is requesting permission to place an in-ground swimming pool partially in the side yard.

The property is located on the street's cul-de-sac. As you can see here, it's narrower in the front and becomes wider as you go towards the back portion of the yard. There's an existing dwelling on the property that was constructed in 2008.

As you're aware, the Zoning Ordinance typically requires swimming pools to be located in the rear yard. However, as you can see on the plat, the applicant's rear yard contains several easements—here, here, and then over here. All these easements significantly encumber his rear yard making it difficult, if not impossible, to place a swimming pool with its surrounding patio in the rear yard and be outside of the easement. As a result, the applicant is proposing a location that would place the pool right here, partially in the rear yard and partially in the side yard. It would meet the required setbacks, being located 14 feet from both the dwelling and from the side property line.

Evaluation. A swimming pool obviously is an accessory to a one-family dwelling, and it's consistent with the site's R-2A residential zoning and SR-2 Suburban Residential designation on the Comprehensive Plan. As far as any substantial detrimental impact on nearby property, the home on the opposite side would be screened by the applicant's home, so I don't anticipate any problem there. The property to the rear is a 1.8-acre parcel that's particularly screened by trees. Neither property should be particularly impacted, especially since the applicant has installed a six-foot-tall wooden privacy fence in his rear and side yards.

The closest home is the adjacent one to the north right here. You can see the privacy fence. This home would be approximately 37 feet from the pool and would likely experience some impact in the form of kids playing and making some noise. But staff doesn't really view this as being much different from kids playing in a sandbox or on a swing set. It would be limited more likely to the summer months. Regardless, staff does not believe this would rise to a substantial detrimental impact.

As a result, staff can recommend approval of the request subject to the conditions found in the staff report.

That concludes my presentation. I'll be happy to answer any questions you may have.

Mr. Bell - Questions?

128				
129	Ms. Harris -	Mr. Gidley, do you know how many feet this pool		
130	would encroach on the side yard?			
131		•		
132	Mr. Gidley -	How many feet into the side yard?		
133	•	•		
134	Ms. Harris -	Yes.		
135				
136	Mr. Gidley -	As I recall, Ms. Harris, roughly half the pool went into		
137	the side yard. So I belie	eve it's approximately 12 feet. They had a couple of		
138	designs they were looking	g at. If you're asking side-to-side, then that's 14 feet off		
139	the house and 14 feet off	the side property line.		
140				
141	Ms. Harris -	Okay, thank you.		
142				
143	Mr. Gidley -	Yes ma'am.		
144				
145	Mr. Baka -	Were any objections received from the next-door		
146	neighbor?			
147	Mr. Cidlov	No oir		
148	Mr. Gidley -	No sir.		
149 150	Mr. Baka -	Thanks.		
151	Wii. Baka -	Tiding.		
152	Mr. Bell -	Anything else? Thank you, Paul.		
153		,		
154	Mr. Gidley -	Thank you, Mr. Chair.		
155				
156	Mr. Blankinship -	All right, sir.		
157				
158	Mr. Robinson -	Good morning, Board members. My name is Royce		
159		wife could not be here today; she's gone away on		
160	business.			
161	10/	ation at 0040 Olds Mills David Dates to Ocean setting States		
162		rty at 9313 Olde Mills Pond Drive in September of last		
163		y wife still works. The purpose we purchased the house we lived in Northern Virginia, and I moved down here to		
164		e, and two—and by the way, we do love it down here—		
165 166	• •	e, and two—and by the way, we do love it down here— eser to our grandchildren and children, who all live in the		
167		ip with a swimming pool. My in-laws had a pool. They		
168		he time they were born, and they always enjoyed pools.		
169		swimmers, high school swim teams. I would like to		
170		dren as well to have a love for the water as they did.		
171	, ,			
172	When we bought the prop	perty, we fully intended to have a pool put in and I didn't		
173	know at the time—I notice	ed there was a drain there, but I didn't know we had the		

174 175	all my backyard. So I'm very limited as to where I could place a pool, and we					
176	really want to put a pool into our property. That was the sole purpose of moving					
177	down here was to be able					
178						
179	I was just asking the Boar	d if they would please consider this. We would greatly				
180	appreciate that. Any quest					
181						
182	Mr. Bell -	Thank you. Any questions?				
183		, , ,				
184	Ms. Harris -	Yes, I have a few questions.				
185		•				
186	Mr. Robinson -	Yes ma'am.				
187						
188	Ms. Harris -	In the report it said that there were other in-ground				
189	pools in the neighborhood					
190						
191	Mr. Robinson -	Yes ma'am.				
192						
193	Ms. Harris -	Are any of them in a cul-de-sac like your property?				
194						
195	Mr. Robinson -	In one of the cul-de-sacs, there are several that sit off.				
196		re in the backyards. I do not notice any that are on the				
197		property goes, our lot sits sort of downhill, so all the				
198		way. We're pretty much limited. I understand you have				
199	to have storm drains. I just happen to have the property that it all comes down to.					
200	•	er properties in that area. I would dare say I think there				
201	are at least four or five.					
202	NA Harria	Dut was any in the authorized and various and matinal				
203	Ms. Harris -	But you say in the cul-de-sac you've only noticed				
204	one?					
205	Mr. Robinson -	We're the only one that I know in our cul-de-sac, yes				
206	ma'am.	vve te the only one that I know in our cul-de-sac, yes				
207	ma am.					
208 209	Ms. Harris -	Okay. Have you spoken with your neighbors at 9308?				
210	IVIS. Hallis -	Okay. Have you spoken with your heighbors at 5000:				
211	Mr. Robinson -	Yes, yes.				
211	IVII : I (ODIII 3011 -	res, yes.				
213	Ms. Harris -	They have no objections?				
214	MG. Harris	They have no objections:				
215	Mr. Robinson -	They're very favorable. No, no objections at all,				
216	ma'am.	individual to the state of the objections at any				
217						
218	Ms. Harris -	Do you have pictures of the pool that you want to				
219	install?					

220		
221	Mr. Robinson -	No ma'am, I do not. I thought the representative from
222	Pla-Mor Pools, who is go	ing to install the pool, would be here this morning. But
223	<del>_</del>	that she would not be able to attend the meeting. She
224	had all that information.	
225		
226	Ms. Harris -	Okay, thank you.
227		
228	Mr. Robinson -	It's a kidney-shaped pool. It's not a square. It's just
229	sort of a kidney shape.	It's not a diving pool. It's going to be just mostly for
230		believe, and it goes to 5 foot 10 inches at the deepest.
231		
232	Ms. Harris -	Thank you.
233		•
234	Mr. Berman -	You say it's not a diving pool. Is there no diving
235	board?	
236		
237	Mr. Robinson -	No diving boards, no.
238		
239	Mr. Mackey -	Mr. Robinson, are there any plans to add a
240	waterslide?	
241		
242	Mr. Robinson -	No sir.
243		
244	Mr. Mackey -	Okay.
245		
246	Mr. Bell -	Any other questions? Thank you, Mr. Robinson.
247	** B !:	<del>-</del>
248	Mr. Robinson -	Thank you very much, ladies and gentlemen.
249	Man Dall	AA/alli aa aa ka Aha aa ak aa a colaisha ia a conicus
250	Mr. Bell -	We'll go on to the next one, which is a variance.
251	[After the conclusion of	the nublic bearings, the Beard discussed the sees
252 253		the public hearings, the Board discussed the case
253 254	convenience of reference	This portion of the transcript is included here for
255	convenience of reference	e.j
256	Mr. Bell -	Do I hear a motion on this case?
257	Wii. Boii	Do i ficulta filodoff cir tillo dage :
258	Mr. Berman -	I move that we approve this based on the conditions
259	set forth.	approve the based on the conditions
260		
261	Mr. Baka -	Second.
262	=	
263	Mr. Bell -	Any discussion?
264		•

265	Ms. Harris -	Yes. I think that we need to enter into the record the
266	fact that there are	so many restrictions to placing anything on this property
267	because of the diffe	rent easements. I think they have little or no choice here.
268		
269	Mr. Bell -	Any other discussion? All those in favor say aye. All
270	those opposed? The	e ayes have it; the motion passes.

After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Mr. Berman, seconded by Mr. Baka, the Board **approved** application **CUP2016-00003**, **ROYCE AND PATRICIA ROBINSON's** request for a conditional use permit pursuant to Section 24-95(i)(4) of the County Code to allow a pool in the side yard at 9313 Olde Mill Pond Drive (PONDS AT DANDRIDGE FARM) (Parcel 758-764-1659) zoned One-Family Residence District (R-3AC) (Brookland). The Board approved the conditional use permit subject to the following conditions:

1. This conditional use permit applies only to the location of a swimming pool in the side yard. All other applicable regulations of the County Code shall remain in force.

2. Only the improvements shown on the plot plan filed with the application may be constructed pursuant to this approval. Any additional improvements shall comply with the applicable regulations of the County Code. Any substantial changes or additions to the design or location of the improvements shall require a new conditional use permit.

3. All exterior lighting shall be shielded to direct light away from adjacent property and streets.

4. The swimming pool shall be enclosed by a fence as required by the Building Code.

297 Affirmative: Baka, Bell, Berman, Harris, Mackey 5
298 Negative: 0
299 Absent: 0

[At this point, the transcript continues with the public hearing on the next case.]

305 Mr. Blankinship - Does anyone else wish to speak to this case? All right.

VAR2016-00007 ROBERT E. STREATER requests a variance from Section 24-95(b)(8), 24-95(c)(1) of the County Code to build a one-family dwelling at 1008 Scott Road (GARDEN CITY) (Parcel 785-757-1793) zoned

Agricultural District (A-1) (Fairfield). The lot width requirement, total lot area requirement and total side yard setback are not met. The applicant proposes 28,900 square feet lot area, 100 feet lot width, and 24 feet sum of side yard setbacks, where the Code requires 30,000 square feet lot area, 150 feet lot width, and 30 feet sum of side yard setbacks. The applicant requests a variance of 1,100 square feet lot area, 50 feet lot width, and 6 feet sum of side yard setbacks.

Mr. Blankinship - Would everyone who intends to speak to this case please stand and be sworn in. Raise your right hands, please. Do you swear the testimony you're about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help you God? Thank you. You may be seated. Mr. Madrigal, if you would begin.

Mr. Madrigal - Mr. Chair, members of the Board, good morning.

Before you is a variance request in order to build a one-family dwelling on an exception lot located in an agricultural district. The property is located in Section D of the Garden City subdivision, which is approximately one-quarter mile northeast of the intersection of Parham and Brook Roads.

This is an older subdivision platted in 1920 during a time when the County did not have an adopted zoning ordinance. The lot is situated on the north side of Scott Road, directly across the street from an existing residence and is one lot removed from a second residence to the east. Because of the age of the subdivision, the lot is subject to the exception standards of the Zoning Ordinance. In the agricultural district, these standards require a developable lot to have 30,000 square feet of lot area, 150 feet of lot width, and 30 feet for the sum of sides, assuming connection to County water. Because the lot measures 100 feet by 289 feet deep, the applicant is requesting a variance for the waiver of 1,100 square feet of lot area, 50 feet of lot width, and 6 feet sum of side yards in order to accommodate a new modular home.

At the present time, the subject lot is undeveloped, relatively flat, and is heavily wooded. The property is currently owned by Mr. Robert E. Streater, who became the sole owner of the lot in 2001. The applicant, Oakwood Homes, is a modular homebuilder out of Hanover County and is representing Ms. Priscilla Claiborne, a contract purchaser of the property. Ms. Claiborne would like to construct a one-story, 2,026-square-foot residence with open parking on the property.

Moving on to the evaluation. With the respect to the threshold question, the property was platted in 1920, prior to the adoption of the Zoning Ordinance. Under Cherrystone, the date the lot was created is significant when determining eligibility for a variance. In this case, the lot was created prior to the adoption of any development standards for the County, making it a viable candidate.

In its current configuration, the property is not large enough to accommodate an agricultural use or any other use other than a dwelling. There are four other existing dwellings on Scott Road, three of which are part of the Garden City subdivision. Unless the owner or applicant acquires additional land or obtains a variance for lot size and width, they cannot make any reasonable use of the property as it currently stands.

With respect to the variance request to reduce the side yard setback, staff believes it is unnecessary in order to establish a reasonable use on an undeveloped lot.

Now the five tests for a variance. Item number 1 requires that the property be acquired in good faith and any hardship is not self-inflicted. In this case, the property owner acquired sole ownership of the property in 2001 and has held it since then. The applicant recently entered into a purchase agreement subject to the approval of a variance to allow the construction of a dwelling. Neither party created the current situation. Also, the courts have determined that purchasing a property knowing that a variance will be required for an intended use does not constitute a self-inflicted hardship or diminish good faith. Thus staff is confident that both parties have acted in good faith.

Item number 2, granting the variance will not be a substantial detriment to adjacent or nearby property. Staff does not anticipate any substantial detrimental impacts to adjacent properties if the variance is approved. Granting the variance for lot size and lot width will bring the property into parity with the other residentially developed lots along Scott Road. The existing A-1 zoning designation is inconsistent with the Comprehensive Plan designation for this section of the subdivision. And in this instance, both designations create an impediment for future residential development of the area. With the exception to the existing home directly across the street, the abutting lots surrounding the subject property aren't improved and should not be affected. Of the four existing residences along Scott Road, the impact will be negligible and limited to a slight increase in traffic.

Staff is not supportive of the applicant's request to reduce the side yard setback requirement for new construction. The lot is sufficiently wide to accommodate a new home under the exception standards. Under these reduced standards, the least yard must be 10 feet and the sum of side yards is 30 feet. Instead, the applicant is proposing 12 feet on either side of the proposed home for a 24-foot sum of side yards, resulting in a 6-foot reduction, which is less than what the code requires.

Item number 3, the situation occurring on the property is not of a general recurring nature necessitating an amendment to the ordinance. The Board typically hears a number of cases each year where lots in older subdivisions do not meet the lot area and lot width requirements. In this instance, this is the third

variance request over the last 16 years for this section of the subdivision. The last two requests were just east of the subject lot at 1000 and 970 Scott Road. Notwithstanding these approvals, the inconsistency between the zoning and Comprehensive Plan designations and the potential future requests for the remaining lots along Scott Road, the frequency of variance requests has been minimal for this section of the subdivision.

Item number 4, the granting of the variance does not result in a use variance or change in zoning classification. The applicant's request is to waive a lot size and lot width requirement of the A-1 exception standards. The proposed dwelling is consistent with the principal uses allowed in the A-1 district and will not constitute a change in the zoning classification of the property.

Item number 5, is relief available by way of a special exception. This is not an available option in this case.

In conclusion, the code applied to the subject property would prohibit the only reasonable use of the property. Granting the lot area and lot width variance request will alleviate that hardship. The current zoning designation is obsolete, and the Comprehensive Plan designation is inconsistent with the residential development pattern in the area. Staff does not anticipate any substantial detrimental impacts for the proposed use. And although the situation is of a recurring nature from a countywide perspective, it is not a generally occurring issue for this specific area at this time.

For these reasons, staff recommends approval of the lot area and lot width variance request. Staff does not support a reduction to the side yard setback requirements. The applicant can construct a dwelling up to 70 feet wide without the need for a variance. And reducing the setback requirement could have a detrimental impact on the neighboring property when it develops. For these reasons, staff recommends denial of the side yard variance request.

This concludes my presentation. I'll be happy to answer any questions you may have.

Mr. Berman - Mr. Madrigal, could you please help me understand the ownership behind this lot as it relates to the difference between Mr. Streater and Ms. Claiborne. I'm a little confused about that. And there are also still several "for sale" signs on the lot.

Mr. Madrigal - The "for sale" signs are just subject to that property being for sale. Mr. Streater is the sole owner. He acquired sole ownership in 2001. Originally he purchased the lot in 1952 with his first wife. He remarried. And I'm not sure what happened with respect to ownership, but in 2001, it's clearly visible that he acquired sole ownership of the property. Then he entered into a purchase agreement with Ms. Claiborne. Is that what you were asking?

Mr. Berman -	And it's Ms. Claiborne that desires to put the unit on
the lot?	·
Mar Mardalan	Di-lu
Mr. Madrigal -	Right.
Mr. Berman -	Okay.
Mr. Madrigal - modular homebuilder.	And she's working through Oakwood Homes, who's a
Mr. Berman -	Okay, thank you. I understand.
drawing. If we are not	Mr. Madrigal, the width of the proposed modular? I was looking at the dimensions of the sketch or the t going to deal with the side yard setbacks, I think your be scaled to no more than 70 feet. So what is the width of now?
Mr. Madrigal -	I believe it is 76 feet.
Ms. Harris -	So it's going to have to be scaled back?
Mr. Madrigal -	They'll have to reduce the width of it, yes.
Ms. Harris -	Okay.
Mr. Madrigal - plan altogether.	If not reduce the width, then go with a different floor
Ms. Harris - before? Is this the first	Okay. Do you know if this property came before us time?
Mr. Madrigal - lot.	Yes. As far as I'm aware, this is the first time for this
Ms. Harris -	We've had something similar in the neighborhood?
Mr. Blankinship -	Yes ma'am.
	Yes. If you'll look at the aerial. This lot here, 1000 oped with a variance in 2000. And then there was another door at 970. That did get approved, but never got built.

493	Ms. Harris -	Okay. This triangular piece of land that we see here,					
494	• •	of the subject property, do we know who owns that or					
495	the dimensions?						
496							
497	Mr. Madrigal -	No. It's a different property owner. I did ask the					
498	applicant if they had reached out to the other surrounding property owners to pick						
499	up additional land, but I was told that she wasn't interested in doing that.						
500	*4 12 3						
501 502	Ms. Harris -	Okay. Thank you.					
	Mr. Bell -	Any mara guartiana? Thank you					
503	wir. beii -	Any more questions? Thank you.					
504	Mr. Madrigal -	Thank you					
505 506	Mir. Maurigar -	Thank you.					
507	Mr. Blankinship -	All right, who would like to speak on behalf of this					
508	application?	All right, who would like to speak on behalf of this					
	application?						
509	Mr. Minton	Cood marning My name is Coott Minton Minton I					
510	Mr. Minton -	Good morning. My name is Scott Minton. M-i-n-t-o-n. I					
511		es. My client, Ms. Claiborne, she's renting right now.					
512		g to get her a new home. This is a piece of property					
513	that's convenient for her as far as her job and everything else.						
514							
515	When I was applying for the variance and so forth—we can accommodate to any						
516	width of the property, so if I need to shrink the floor plan or go to a different floor						
517	plan that still works for her, that's not a problem. Basically, I was just looking for a						
518	buildable area for us to be	e able to build this house for her.					
519							
520	Do you have any question	ns about the home?					
521	, , ,						
522	Mr. Bell -	Will there be any problems with reducing the size of					
523	the house to fit this?						
524							
525	Mr. Minton -	No sir. Whether it's the same floor plan or not, I can					
526		asically making it equal throughout the house or getting					
527	-	its within the actual buildable setbacks. But no sir, there					
528	is no problem with that.						
529	4.4- D. II	A 41. 12 O					
530	Mr. Bell -	Any other questions?					
531							
532	Mr. Minton -	I do have one question for you. When reading					
533		built on a crawlspace. That's not a problem; we always					
534	-	aces. But as far as the exterior being a brick foundation,					
535		we call a split-face block. It's an architectural block					
536	versus just a smooth blo	ck. I didn't know if that was something for the County					
537	itself or that particular area, if it has to be brick.						

March 24, 2016

539	Mr. Baka -	Are you referring to condition #7?			
540 541	Mr. Minton -	Yes sir.			
542 543 544 545	Mr. Blankinship - condition to be brick or sp	So you would request that the Board change the lit-face block?			
546 547 548	Mr. Minton - that's happening with that	Either/or. I just didn't know if that was like a covenant particular neighborhood.			
549 550 551	Mr. Blankinship - character of the neighborh	No. It's a recommendation from staff based on the nood.			
552 553 554 555	Mr. Minton - foundations. I don't think ask if that was a requirem	Sure, sure. Most of the homes there are all on brick saw any that were on a split-face, but I just wanted to ent for you guys or not.			
556 557 558	Mr. Blankinship - then it would become a re	If that condition is there and it's approved that way, quirement.			
559 560	Mr. Minton -	Yes sir. Okay. Not a problem.			
561 562	Mr. Blankinship -	It would be up to the Board whether to impose that.			
563 564	Mr. Minton -	Sure.			
565 566 567 568	Ms. Harris - neighborhood, it would no the street from it.	I think in keeping with the character of the eed to be brick. I'm looking at the house that's across			
569 570	Mr. Blankinship -	Yes ma'am.			
571 572 573	Ms. Harris - that. And we have a pictu	Two doors down, I guess, or two lots down. I noticed re of it in our packet too.			
574 575	Mr. Minton -	Correct. Yes ma'am.			
576 577	Ms. Harris -	Just need to conform to that.			
578 579	Mr. Minton -	Not a problem.			
580 581	Mr. Bell -	Any other questions? Ms. Claiborne?			
582 583 584		Good morning. I'm Priscilla Claiborne. I just am very his home. It will be the first home I've ever bought, and e mine. Right now I don't have any children; it's just me			

585 586 587 588	and my dog. But I'm really looking forward to having a piece of property that is mine here in this area. I own a piece of property in King William, but it's a little too far from work. So I really would like to be able to live in this place, in this neighborhood. Do you all have any questions for me?					
589 590 591	Mr. Bell -	Do you own the property?				
592 593	Mr. Blankinship -	She's the contract purchaser.				
594 595 596 597	Ms. Claiborne - Yes. If you all approve what we're talking about today, then I will definitely be willing to buy the property. However, if you deny it, there's no point in me buying it.					
598 599	Mr. Bell -	Have you read the conditions in here as well?				
600 601 602	Ms. Claiborne - was explained to me by M	I've read some. I have not read all of it, no. A lot of it Ir. Minton.				
603 604 605	Mr. Bell - conditions as well.	When we vote on it, we'll be voting on all the				
606 607 608	Ms. Claiborne - he hit all the ones that we	Those that he has spoken to me about—and I'm sure re most relevant—I have no problem with agreeing to.				
609 610 611	Mr. Bell - ahead?	Would you like to read them before we vote or just go				
612 613 614 615	, ,	You can go ahead. I take him at his word. He's been ne, and very cooperative, answering all questions. He I thought would be a game changer for me at all.				
616 617 618	Mr. Bell - voting on, one with the are	You understand that there are two parts that we'll be ea—				
619 620	Ms. Claiborne -	Yes.				
621 622	Mr. Bell -	—which could be approved.				
623 624	Ms. Claiborne -	Yes.				
625 626 627	Mr. Bell - denied.	And then the other part for the side yard could be				
628 629	Ms. Claiborne -	Yes.				
630	Mr. Bell -	Okay. That's also in here.				

631		
632	Ms. Claiborne -	Okay.
633		
634	Mr. Bell -	Okay, thank you.
635		
636	Ms. Harris -	Ms. Claiborne, why did you decide on this lot? I
637	noticed that on Columbus	s there are quite a few lots. I know this one had a "for
638	sale" sign on it, but how d	id you make your decision?
639		
640	Ms. Claiborne -	Some options were sent to me. I went to review the
641	different pieces of proper	ty that I saw. I liked this piece of property because it's
642	very close to Brook Roa	ad. I also like the idea of being able to walk to buy
643	· •	alk to go to Walmart, to just do things that are very
644	available, very close in the	ne neighborhood. I like the idea of having that access,
645	being so close to Brook	Road, to just about everything. That's why I like that
646	piece.	
647		
648	Ms. Harris -	Right. Because I was saying there are quite a few
649	•	area that have the same advantage that you just
650		ndering why this piece. Is your to-be land level? I think it
651	extends back 200-and-so	me feet. But is that level?
652		
653	Ms. Claiborne -	Primarily it's level. I think it might be a little rocky, but
654	primary it is.	
655		
656	Ms. Harris -	Okay. Thank you.
657		
658	Mr. Bell -	Any other questions? Thank you.
659		<del>-</del>
660	Ms. Claiborne -	Thank you.
661		
662	Mr. Bell -	Is there anyone else in here that would like to speak
663	on this? Come forward, pl	lease.
664		
665	Ms. Lee -	Good morning. My name is Duchess Lee. I am power
666		r, Robert Streater. L-e-e. Duchess. D-u-c-h-e-s-s. I've
667	•	is very interested in selling the land to Ms. Claiborne.
668		e has no problems with it. That's why I wanted to come.
669		ng. He told me he really wants to go ahead and sell the
670		says he needs to get everything in order. If she's asking
671		e built on it, I just ask you all to approve it so that she
672	can do this. Any question	s for me?
673	Ma Hawis	10/h at/a   a at ma = 0
674	Ms. Harris -	What's your last name?
675	Ma Las	
676	Ms. Lee -	Lee. L-e-e.

477										
677 678	Ms. Harris -	Thank	VOLL	Have	VOLL	spoken	with	anv	of	the
		IIIalik	you.	llave	you	spoken	AAILII	ally	OI.	uic
679	neighbors?									
680	Ma Las	Nin I ma		ما ما ما ما		II a & Alba a and	طماستم			
681	Ms. Lee -	•	-			ll of the r	_			
682	of them have passed. I gre									
683	that was Reverend Flemin	_			-					
684	that's Reverend Fleming'	s house	. We	used t	o live	e right st	raight	acros	ss ti	rom
685	them.	t								
686										
687	Ms. Harris -	So you	have	not che	ecked	with the	neigh	bors i	rece	ntly
688	to see if they would approve	∕e.								
689										
690	Ms. Lee -	No. No	I have	not.						
691										
692	Ms. Harris -	Okay. 1	Thank	you.						
693										
694	Ms. Lee -	.Any mo	re que	estions'	?					
695		-								
696	Mr. Bell -	Any oth	er que	estions'	? Tha	nk you, N	1s. Lee	∋.		
697		·				-				
698	Ms. Lee -	Thank	you.							
699										
700	Mr. Bell -	Is there	anyo	ne else	? Sta	te your na	ame.			
701			•			•				
702	Mr. Deering -	My nan	ne is	Dennis	Mark	Deering	. I sta	ay acr	oss	the
703	street from this house. Is t									
704	area? Can it be a modular			•						
705										
706	Mr. Blankinship -	Becaus	e it's	agricu	ıltural	zoning,	you	could	l pu	ıt a
707	manufactured home there									
708	by right. Or you could build						•			
709	2, 1.9 21 , 22 22 22									
710	Mr. Deering -	I have	the pi	roperty	riaht	beside l	ners. I	own	botl	h of
711	those lots. I actually have		•		_					
712	these foto. I detadily have	rour rigii		at at oa.						
713	Mr. Blankinship -	Okay.								
714	With Blatticitistisp	Ollay.								
715	Mr. Deering -	All right	t Than	nk vou						
716	With Decring	/ \\\ \ \ \ \	i. IIIai	iit you.						
717	Ms. Harris -	Excuse	me v	what is	vour	name? W	/ould v	/คม รา	د العد	/OUT
718	last name, please?	LAUGUSE	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	THAT IS	, 001	Y	, Juliu )	, 0 4 0 1	11 )	, Juli
719	act name, piease:									
719	Mr. Deering -	Deering	n It'e e	hallad	D <b>-</b>	e-r-i-n-g.				
721	Wil. Deeling -	Decinió	g. 11.3 S	phelied	D-6-6	,-1-1-11 <b>-</b> y.				
721	Ms. Harris -	Okay.								
122	1413. I Idilia "	Okay.								

723	Ma Daman	Mr. Danima da vari barra a camana Abat vari vicint Aba					
724	Mr. Berman -	Mr. Deering, do you have a concern that you want the					
725	Board to consider when we render a decision?						
726	Mr. Decrina	lust the aethecks, that it mosts those I don't have					
727	Mr. Deering -	Just the setbacks, that it meets those. I don't have					
728	any other problems. Th	iank you.					
729 730	Mr. Bell -	Any other questions? Thank you.					
730 731	IVII. DÇII -	Any other questions? Thank you.					
732	That's the agenda If th	nere's no one else that wishes to say anything, we'll go on					
733	and go to the voting of	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
734	and go to the voting of	the agenta.					
735	[After the conclusion	of the public hearings, the Board discussed the case					
736		on. This portion of the transcript is included here for					
737	convenience of refere						
738		<u>-</u>					
739	Mr. Bell -	Do I hear a motion?					
740		•					
741	Ms. Harris -	I move that we approve this variance. It seems that					
742		ical use for this property without a dwelling placed on it. I					
743	believe that the modular home that we have seen with the conditions would be						
744	an attractive addition to the neighborhood. My motion is to approve.						
745							
746	Mr. Bell -	Do I hear a second?					
747							
748	Mr. Baka -	Just to clarify. Is that a motion to approve the lot area					
749	only or both variance re	equests?					
750	Ms. Harris -	Just the lot area and the width.					
751 752	IVIS. Mai 115 -	Just the lot area and the width.					
753	Mr. Baka -	And the width.					
754	Wii. Baka	And the width.					
755	Ms. Harris -	Right.					
756	W.C. Francis	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
757	Mr. Baka -	But not the sum of the side yards?					
758		•					
759	Ms. Harris -	I think that would be a separate motion, would it not?					
760	•	•					
761	Mr. Blankinship -	Either way.					
762	,						
763	Ms. Harris -	Okay.					
764							
765	Mr. Bell -	We can make it as one.					
766							

March 24, 2016

Ms. Harris - Then I can include the fact that we are not approving the side yard setbacks desired here or applied for because we believe that a house can be constructed within the confines of the ordinance requirement.

.770 

Mr. Baka - I'll second the motion.

Mr. Bell - Any discussion? Hearing none, all those in favor of the motion say aye. All those opposed? The ayes have it; the motion passes.

After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Ms Harris, seconded by Mr. Baka, the Board **approved** only the lot area and lot width variance requests of application **VAR2016-00007**, **ROBERT E. STREATER's** request for a variance from Section 24-95(b)(8), 24-95(c)(1) of the County Code to build a one-family dwelling at 1008 Scott Road (GARDEN CITY) (Parcel 785-757-1793) zoned Agricultural District (A-1) (Fairfield). The Board approved these variances subject to the following conditions:

1. This variance applies only to the lot width and lot area requirements for the construction of a one-family dwelling only. All other applicable regulations of the County Code shall remain in force.

2. Only the improvements shown on the plot plan and building design filed with the application, modified to comply with the side yard requirements, may be constructed pursuant to this approval. Any additional improvements shall comply with the applicable regulations of the County Code or as amended by conditions of approval. Any substantial changes or additions to the design or location of the improvements will require a new variance.

3. Approval of this request does not imply that a building permit will be issued. Building permit approval is contingent on Health Department requirements, including, but not limited to, soil evaluation for a septic drain field and a reserve area.

4. At the time of building permit application, the applicant shall submit the necessary information to the Department of Public Works to ensure compliance with the requirements of the Chesapeake Bay Preservation Act and the code requirements for water quality standards.

5. The proposed dwelling shall be set back no more than 100 feet from the rightof-way of Scott Road.

6. The proposed dwelling shall comply with the requirements for the sum of the side yard setbacks set forth in §24 95(c)(1) of the County Code.

7. The proposed dwelling shall be built on a crawl space with an exterior brick foundation, including brick piers for the projecting covered front porch.

813					
814	8. The proposed dwelling shall be served by county water.				
815		,,			
816					
817	Affirmative:	Baka, Bell, Berman, Harris, Mackey	5		
818	Negative:	baka, bell, bellhall, halls, wackey	0		
	•				
819	Absent:		0		
820					
821					
822	Mr. Bell -	We'll go on then and approve the minutes	of our last		
823	meeting. Do I hear a mo	tion on the minutes?			
824					
825	Mr. Berman -	I move we waive the reading of the minute	s and enter		
826	them as written.	J			
827					
828	Mr. Bell -	Do I hear a second?			
829	Will Bell	Do i fical a second:			
	Mr. Maakov	Second.			
830	Mr. Mackey -	Second.			
831		A 12 2 A 13 2 11 11			
832	Mr. Bell -	Any discussion? Hearing none, all those			
833	the motion say aye. All those opposed? The ayes have it; the minutes have been				
834	approved.				
835					
836	On a motion by Mr. Berman, seconded by Mr. Mackey, the Board approved as				
837	submitted the Minutes of the February 25, 2016, Henrico County Board of				
838	Zoning Appeals meeting		•		
839	3 1.				
840					
841	Affirmative:	Baka, Bell, Berman, Harris, Mackey	5		
842	Negative:	Bana, Bon, Bonnan, Flamo, Mackey	0		
	Absent:		0		
843	Absent.		U		
844					
845					
846	Mr. Bell -	Any old business or new business w			
847	discuss? All right, we'll v	ote to adjourn then. Do I hear a motion that w	e adjourn?		
848					
849	Mr. Baka -	So moved.			
850					
851	Mr. Bell -	Do I hear a second?			
852					
853	Ms. Harris -	Second.			
854					
855	Mr. Bell -	All those in favor say aye. The meeting is	adiourned		
		All those in lavoi say aye. The meeting is	aujouineu.		
856	Thank you.				
857					
858					

859	Affirmative:	Baka, Bell, Berman, Harris, Mackey	5
860	Negative:	•	0
861	Absent:		0
862			
863			
864			
865		$\mathcal{I}_{\mathcal{I}}(\mathcal{I})$	
866		Jell .	
867			
868		Gentry Bell	
869		Chairman	
870			
871		_	
872		01 17 00	
873			
874			
875		Benjamin Blankinship, <b>∕</b> Al <b>¢</b> P	
876		Secretary	
877			
878			
879			
880			
881			